
  ECCLESIASTICAL PARISHES 
 RATIONALISATION FOLLOWED BY “CHOP AND CHANGE”

Although the purpose of the Teffont Parish History project states that it is to use the Parish (Civil Parish) Minutes from 1894 when Local Government  split the worlds of Church and State, it quickly became obvious that the Church, at least in rural areas, would remain as a driving force in the new world of Parish Councils and Parish Meetings.  To show this happened one only has to read the list of the names of the Chairmen of Parish Councils and Parish Meetings in Teffont – Evias had the Rector as Chairman of its Parish Meeting from 1894 until the two Teffonts merged in 1935 and even Magna had a cleric as Chairman of the Parish Council until the end of the 1st World War and Colonel Kennedy Shaw took over.  Basically the same people made sure that what they wanted for the village was what would actually happen.  A lot of the power was held by the decisions about who would be new rector and with him, who will run the Parish Council.  The process of appointing a new Rector was, at the end of the 19th Century, a complex one and varied from Parish to Parish. 
In rural areas, ownership of land normally has the advantage of the Church of England Living or Benefice which brings not only a stipend but also the use of the Rectory or Vicarage.  Thus the Mayne and Keatinge families have been appointing Rectors for Teffont Evyas for most of three hundred years and only handed that power over fairly recently.  Teffont Magna was a little different in that it was originally the property of the Abbey of Shaftesbury and, after the Reformation, of the Earls of Pembroke.  As Magna’s small Church, now dedicated to King Edward of the West Saxons, was only a Chapel of Ease and did not rate a vicar of its own, this Chapel had been an “out-station” of Dinton and known as a Chaplaincy for hundreds of years.  One obvious effect of that was that there was no graveyard in Teffont Magna; all coffins had to be put onto a bier and wheeled over Teffont Common along what was known as the “Coffin Path” or “Dark Lane” – not an easy task – and then buried in Dinton graveyard. Discussions about the availability of a new bier are well minuted in Parish Council meetings.

At the end of the 1st World War, we had the somewhat ridiculous situation of a single ecclesiastical parish of Dinton and Teffont Magna having one incumbent, albeit possibly with help of one or more curates or Chaplains, while the much smaller village of Evias had its own Church and a very imposing Vicarage - the house now called Bridges.  Although no records have been found of the discussions that ensued about the idea of rationalising this, what we can now see in the London Gazette of 31st October 1922 shows the level to which that situation had had to be raised; there is a reference in the London Gazette to a report used by the Ecclesiastical Commissioners for England and that the scheme was approved by the Bishop.  The two current incumbents were Rev Oscar Worne for Evias and Rev John Heslop Audland for Dinton - and hence for Teffont Magna too - and both had to sign the agreement to change this.
A great deal more history of this church side is hidden in the records of the various PCC’s meeting’s minutes and this would be very worth while for someone to research. As indicated above, one of the major changes that came out from the 1922 reorganization was that Teffont Magna acquires a graveyard instead of coffins having to be wheeled over the coffin path (Footpath 6) to Dinton.  Again, the details of the setting up of this should be interesting to research.  The best surmise so far established is that that happened in 1924 and that the space for the Magna grave-yard was donated by Lord Bedisloe who had bought Pembroke lands in Teffont and possibly in Dinton as well in 1922. There may have been one or more cottages on this site at some time.  In addition to this new graveyard just across the road from Magna Church, there is a mention in the minutes of the Annual Parish Meeting in March 1952 of the possibility of a “burial ground in the Parish”, one that would require a new bier so presumably some distance from the two churches.  Again, more research is needed here.

On the subject of the Magna graveyard, one report is clearly documented in the Minutes of a Parish Council Meeting held in June 1965; this is the tabling of a letter written by the PCC and requesting financial assistance from the Parish Council for repairs to the graveyard wall.  The Clerk stated that he had a number of enquiries but had been unable to find any grounds for giving aid.  It was resolved that the PCC be informed accordingly.  There was also apparently concerns about the water table levels with the new graveyard.
The agreement, referred to above and documented in the London Gazette resulted in the separation of the Teffont Magna part of the Benefice of Dinton and Teffont Magna from that of the Dinton part and its joining with Teffont Evyas to create the new Benefice of Teffont with boundaries the same as those of the Civil Parishes of Teffont Magna and Teffont Evias.  It left the Benefice of Dinton on its own.  Bridges became the “Parsonage House”.  The Living was to be alternatively in the gift of whoever historically had Teffont Evias and who had Dinton.  

Rev Oscar Worne remained living in Bridges and serving the expanded parish until 1929 when Rev Keatinge Clay took over until 1953, with Rev Evelyn Cecil Bradley staying until 1959.  By this time, Bridges had been sold in – 1936 - and a smaller parsonage built. Between 1959 and 1980, six rectors came and went – plus one year when the rector of Chilmark, Rev Trotman, became Priest in Charge to hold the fort.  In this period was not all was sweetness and light as the various rectors were serving more that one Parish each and the views of the suitability of potential rectors depended on the type of Church of England prayer books, orders of Services etc; this sometimes caused dissension when the views of the rectors being inconsistent with those of their congregations.  In 1980 a Team Ministry was established serving the parishes of Fovant, Sutton Mandeville, Teffont with its two Churches and Compton Chamberlayne.  In 1991, Rev John Eade, living at Fovant, took over responsibility for the Team Ministry.  He retired in 2003 and the opportunity was taken to revamp the Team Ministry structure so that Teffont was teamed with Dinton, Barford St Martin and Burcombe.  John Staples was the first Team Vicar for that team and a very successful one; he retired in 2008 to be followed by Rev Jane Tailby.  We are now left with the continuing shortage of clergy, partly eased by Teffont having a monthly lay-led service which seems a popular initiative.  

While Teffont has the same financial problems as the remainder of the Church of England, it has a particular difficulty caused by its need to support two old buildings.   Two churches means twice the costs - although this is to some degree mitigated by the success of the Teffont Trust – for details see the separate Section of the Project.
If one looks back the full 120 years addressed in the Project, has the world changed to where Church and State no longer have their interests in common and, if they have, should they be?  Everyone will have their own view of this.
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